
1 

 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING 
City Hall - 950 Locust St., Carter Lake, Iowa 

June 11, 2018 7:00 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 

Roll Call 

Approval of the Agenda 

1. Consent Agenda 

a. Planning Board Minutes from 5/14/2018 

b. Review City Council Minutes  

c. Building Permits from May 2018  

2. New Business 

a. James Moraski 4423 N 17th Street – request to adjust property line 

b. Review request to close Avenue J per City Council request 

c. Review height restrictions in all zoning districts per City Council request 

d. Review sidewalk requirements in Commercial Districts per City Council request 

e. Review Casino plans for Interior Design and Floor Plan  

f. Election of Officers for 2018 

3. Old Business 

a. Sign Ordinance 

b. Comprehensive Plan 

4. Comments 

Adjourn  

06/05/18 

jms 



City of Carter Lake 
950 Locust Street 
Carter Lake, IA  51510 
Proceedings: Planning Board Meeting Special Meeting 
Monday, May 14, 2018 – 7:00 PM 
 
This Planning Board Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chairman Tim Podraza.  
Roll Call: Present: Ed Palandri, Kathy Dueling, Jay Gundersen, Tim Podraza, Nate Bradburn, and Karen Fisher. Ray 
Pauly was absent.  Also present: City Attorney Mike O’Bradovich and City Clerk Jackie Stender 
 

Chairman Podraza opened the public hearing, asking for any comments, no written comments or 
concerns regarding the proposed Zoning Change in C-2 general commercial district, the board will be 
accepting comments concerning proposed text amendment to the land use development ordinances for 
the city of Carter Lake, Iowa.  The land use development ordinances adopted by the city of Carter Lake, 
Iowa on August 28, 2006, shall be amended as follows:  
Approved use in C-2 commercial district shall now include "gaming facilities" activities as defined by the 
ordinance in section 307(0) on property held in trust by the government of the United States of America, 
and that the table 4-1 "use matrix for office and commercial'' type in the code shall be amended to 
identify "gaming facilities" as an approved and permitted (P) use in C-2 Zoning District and in no other 
Zoning District other than C-2.   The City Clerk has not received any written or verbal comments on the 
subject.  Bill Dalheimer asked why if the original plan from 2009 was to designate the area for a medical clinic 
why did that change? Larry Wright explained that after re-evaluation the vision of the tribe changed several 
questions of the tribal members regarding the proposed project. Gundersen moved to close the public 

hearing, seconded by Fisher, Ayes: Unanimous.  Chairman closed the public hearing and called for roll call 
at 7:10 p.m. Roll Call: Present: Ed Palandri, Kathy Dueling, Jay Gundersen, Tim Podraza, Nate Bradburn, 
and Karen Fisher. Ray Pauly was absent.  Also present: City Attorney Mike O’Bradovich and City Clerk 
Jackie Stender 
 
Dueling moved to approve of the agenda, seconded by Gundersen to approve the agenda. Ayes: Unanimous.  
Fisher moved to approve consent agenda which included Planning Board minutes from 11/13/2017 and 
4/23/2018, review of city council meetings from January 1st through April, and Building Permits from November 
2017 to current, seconded by Gundersen.    Ayes: Unanimous.   
Palandri moved to add the addition of “Zoning Request change for C-2 District”, seconded by Gundersen, Ayes: 
Unanimous.   
 
New Business:  
City Attorney Mike O’Bradovich gave brief history of the tribal communications with the City since 2009. 
Recommend that the building codes should meet same standards of all other buildings in Carter Lake.  The City 
Council in the past was not opposed to gaming, but there is no “Gaming” listed in the code.  Therefore it makes 
sense to add gaming to land that is designated as “trust land”.  The council recommendation that gaming only be 
allowed on Indian tribal land and that is why the board had the hearing tonight.  Gundersen expressed concerns 
about spot zoning.  City Attorney said, no this is adding an approved use to the land development ordinances. 
When property was rezoned on the riverfront for the Omaha Tribe, it was a recognition of the most appropriate 
use of the property at that time. Podraza asked if they can add a conditional use permit. City Attorney, said yes 
you can.   Bradburn asked what would be the purpose; the Tribe can do whatever they wanted but want to be 
good neighbors with the City so they are following along with our required processes.  Gundersen moved to adopt 
the new language to the zoning matrix, seconded by Dueling. Ayes: Unanimous.   
  



Chairman requested a representative for the Ponca Tribe come up to review the Commercial Building Permit 
application.   Doug Jandro, Vice President of Business Development for Kraus-Anderson Construction 
Company is here on the site work and demolition permits.  Trisha Sieh, Civil Engineer/Project Manager with 
Kimley Horn. 

Trailer is being eliminated, Gundersen brought up the stormwater problems. Tribe does not want to invest a 
bunch money because the first building is temporary, asking to add conditions to developer agreement to 
have the remaining issues completed in 3-4 years if phase 2-3 do not get completed.    

Islands have been created in the parking lot to take some of the incidental stormwater and regrading of the 
soil will be done in increase infiltrate better than what is currently there.  The final plan will include a 
permanent storm water system.   

Doug: This structure is called temporary because it will be open while they are building the new casino so 
this building will either go away or be incorporated into the permanent facility. They will plan the storm water 
management for the permanent casino 

Jay: The board wants to know what is considered temporary.  Temporary could be 10 years, 1 year 6 months?     

Doug: Right now from what the design team is being told that assuming all funding and financing is put into 
place to larger structure would be in operation in 2020.  And we certainly expect if that does not happen in 
that timeframe they would should enter into a developer agreement with the city to give ourselves that time 
frame.  If after 5 years if a permanent structure is not built the tribe will need to come into compliance with 
all the requirements of that zoning district.  

City Attorney asked Lem Sheard, building inspector, to come forward, has the tribe submitted their 
applications? Lem stated yes last week for footings, grading and foundation plans.  Has not acted on anything 
yet.   Lem does not have any concerns about the building but has not had chance to review the revised 
drawings.   Attorney, that if Lem believes special inspectors are needed to inspect certain parts, that you have 
the right to request those inspections.   

Jay, see no problem with footings plan, he does see issues with the site plan because of the drainage.  
Planning board is making recommendation to council, because of the drainage plan is not adequate. 

Larry Wright, representing the tribe, this is not our first option to build a temporary building, but the fact that 
the Tribe does not have a compact with the state and governor’s office we cannot financially move forward 
with the entire build out.  The board thanked Larry for the information and want to make sure if it is a 
temporary building then it be truly temporary.  How long it stays temporary is based on the State of Iowa.   
Gundersen moved to approve the footing plan, seconded by Dueling. Ayes: Unanimous.   
Gundersen moved to deny drainage plan, seconded by Bradburn. Ayes: Unanimous. 
Now they don’t have to come back to the Planning Board for these two permits because the board has made their 
decision, now it falls to the City Council since this is the recommendation from Board.   

 
Election of Officers for 2018: Gundersen moved to appoint Kathy Dueling as Chairman, seconded by Fisher 
Ayes: Gundersen, Bradburn, Fisher, Podraza, Dueling. Ney: Palandri;  Gunderson moved to appoint Ray Pauly as 
Vice-Chairman, seconded by Kathy. Ayes: Gundersen, Bradburn, Fisher, Podraza, Dueling. Ney: Palandri. 

 
Due to the lateness, Podraza suggest the group table the Sign Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan until a 
later date. 

Comments from City Attorney, wants the board to take to heart what he said earlier allowing them to do 
what they need to do on trust land is one thing, requiring them to do what you expect on non-trust land is 



where you have your ability to influence what it looks like.  There is no question that the development cannot 
be at all times just on trust land and they know that.  The water issue that Jay was talking about, back to 1993 
when all the water came and there is no good answer to it, the best answer left when Omaha would not work 
with us in putting a pipe underneath Abbott Drive and that was a matter of timing.  The City Engineer at that 
time made the recommendation and the former engineers Schemmer’s Associates made the same 
recommendation but it simply never got done.  And storm water utility, retention and detention ponds.  It’s 
not just the property owner’s problem of what to do with the water, but it affects all the neighboring 
properties and that is where the city’s interest comes in.  The Council needs to address the issue or it will 
keep coming back over and over again in the future and hopefully the Council will get a plan in place to 
correct the problem.  
 

With no further comments, meeting adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
___________________________    ___________________________ 
Tim Podraza, Co-Chairman     Jackie Stender, City Clerk 



 
 
 
City of Carter Lake 
Regular City Council Meeting  
Monday, April 16, 2018 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance  
Mayor Cumberledge called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
Roll Call: Council members Present: Aaron Grell, Pat Paterson, Jackie Wahl, Jason Gunderson and 
Frank Corcoran. Also present City Clerk, Jackie Stender and City Attorney Michael O’Bradovich. 
 
Approval of the Agenda – Gundersen moved to approve agenda, seconded by Paterson; Ayes: 
Unanimous. Gundersen moved to approve the Consent Agenda items as follows: March Council 
minutes, March Financial reports; March claims, overtime reports and department reports from 
Maintenance, Building Inspector, Parks, Fire/EMS, Senior Center, Library and Police Department; 
seconded by Corcoran. Ayes: Unanimous.  
 
New Business:  
Grell moved to approve Liquor License for Dollar General Store, seconded by Wahl, Ayes: 
Unanimous.  Wahl moved to approve Fire Department membership for Jannetta Norman, 
seconded by Gundersen, Ayes: Unanimous.  Gundersen moved to approve re-appointment of 
Kitty Buchanan to the Board of Adjustments, seconded by Corcoran. Ayes: Unanimous. 
 
Representative from OPPD was present to explain the future plans to phase in the LED 
streetlights over the next 5 years.  
 
Representative from SWIPCO was present to update the Council concerning all services offered 
by the Southwest Iowa Planning Council. Grant writing, Community planning and busing services 
to name a few. 
 
Steve Robinette from PeopleService presented a proposal to become the Certified Operator of 
the Water Distribution system, it is required that a DNR Certified Operator handle testing and 
reporting for the City’s water system.  Corcoran moved to approve the proposal, seconded by 
Grell;  Ayes: Wahl, Grell, Paterson, Corcoran    Ney: Gundersen 
 
Department Supervisor Reports: Building Inspector:   Coming up on deadline for 97 Carter Lake 
Club, it was brought to his attention that asbestos has been removed from the house and need 
direction on where to go from here.  Inspector will need to serve abatement notice and options 
available for the home owner. Municipal of Infraction can be issued if not resolved in timely 
matter.   Council agreed to move forward.    Chief Kannedy and Inspector have contacted 30 
home owners, Mayor requested face to face contact before issuing abatements. 
 



Chief Kannedy, Woodhouse matched the State bid price for a new cruise at $27,142.00 with add-
ons totaling $29,097. Delivery expected in mid-June.  This is to add a car to the fleet not replacing. 
 
Mayor Cumberledge request council support to send a request to the Planning Board to review 
adding “Gaming” to the matrix for the C-2 district on land owned by the Tribe.  Corcoran moved 
to make recommendation, seconded by Grell, Ayes: Unanimous.  After the Planning Board hears 
the request, a public hearing will be set to hear public comments and the Planning Board will 
provide a written recommendation back to the Council. 
 
Wahl presented a Social Media policy to be added to the employee handbook to help manage 
how and who manages the current sites on the internet. Gundersen moved to approve, seconded 
by Paterson. Ayes: Unanimous. 
 
Paterson requested the council set a public workshop to review the Rental Inspection Ordinance, 
definitions, resolution of the fee structure and forms.  It is available online and copies at City Hall 
and at the Library. Scheduled workshop for April 30 at 4:30 p.m.  Requested an update from Mike 
on Property Tax Abatement – Mike is still working on getting more information. 
 
Clerk Stender presented the Iowa DOT Compliance with the Title VI Program that is required to 
be adopted the Program to sign documents needed to keep receiving RUT funding  
Paterson moved to approve, seconded by Corcoran, Ayes: Unanimous. 
 
Corcorn moved to approve Resolution to adopt Carter Lake Flexible Benefits Plan, seconded by 
Gundersen, Ayes: Unanimous. 
 
Paterson moved to approve Resolution for Public Purpose Policy for Expenditures of Funds 
seconded by Gundersen, Ayes: Unanimous. 
 
Corcoran moved to approve Resolution to State Legislature against the proposed reduction in 
backfill Paterson, Ayes: Unanimous. 
 
Gundersen moved to approve 1st reading of Ordinance regarding Right Of Way Permits, seconded 
by Grell, Ayes: Unanimous. 
 
Adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 
 
Jackie Stender    Ron Cumberledge  
City Clerk    Mayor  



 
 
 
City of Carter Lake 
Regular City Council Meeting  
Monday, May 21, 2018 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance  
Mayor Cumberledge called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
Roll Call: Council members Present: Aaron Grell, Pat Paterson, Jackie Wahl, Jason Gunderson and 
Frank Corcoran. Also present City Clerk, Jackie Stender and City Attorney Michael O’Bradovich. 
 
Approval of the Agenda – Paterson moved to approve agenda, seconded by Grell; Ayes: 
Unanimous. Paterson moved to approve the Consent Agenda items as follows: April Council 
minutes, April Financial reports; April claims, overtime reports and department reports from 
Maintenance, Building Inspector, Parks, Fire/EMS, Senior Center, Library and Police Department; 
seconded by Gundersen. Ayes: Unanimous.  
 
New Business:  
Gundersen moved to approve Liquor License for Jonesys, seconded by Wahl, Ayes: Unanimous. 
Corcoran moved to Solid Waste Collector Permits, seconded by Gundersen. Ayes: Unanimous.   
Gundersen moved to approve Urban Revitalization Application for 918 Silver Lane, Ayes: Wahl, 
Grell, Paterson, Corcoran; Gundersen-abstained from voting.   
Council reviewed the Salvage Yard permit for City Super Shop, council is not satisfied with the 
progress that was promised to have the fence completed by today’s date 5/21/18.  Paterson 
motioned to assess a $50 per day fine until the fence is completed as required for salvage yards, 
if not completed within 60 days, action may be taken to terminate salvage yard permit, seconded 
by Grell. Ayes: Unanimous. 
 
Communication from Department Supervisors:  Police Chief Kannedy has implemented new 
requirements for mandatory patrolling in the parks every hour and every shift.  Department has 
purchased patrol bikes for officers to utilize after they go through training with Council Bluffs 
Police Department.  Chief will be extending an offer to hire an officer this month and another 
officer will be hired after July 1st to bring the department to 10 full time officers.   
Interim Public Works Director Stan Olsen has hired a new member to the staff, Phillip Buchanan.  
Splash pad is operations, flag pole has been repaired, air conditioner back up running. Wondering 
if he should look at getting bids for resurfacing streets.  Council recommended requesting 
multiple bids.  Mayor updated the council on the Parks Department.  Some have requested a dog 
park near the park.  Elkhorn fencing provided a bid, council would like to see additional bids and 
hear more details for the idea and public input. 
 
Mayor received a request to vacate a portion of right away on 17th Street from James Moraski.  
The current right of way is much wider than other areas of town and would like it reduced to 25 
feet.  City attorney said that the Planning Board needs to review and a survey will have to be 



completed.  It sounds like the neighbors are interested in being part of the request to adjust 
property line on 17th Street.  Gundersen motioned to approve and send to Planning Board for 
review, seconded by Corcoran. Ayes: Unanimous. 
 
Mayor has received a request from William Geis to donate property located on the northeast 
corner of 13th and Hyatt.  Mayor contacted Habitat for Humanity to see if they would be 
interested in utilizing the property and no one has responded.  Paterson moved to accept 
donation of the land, Grell seconded the motion.  Ayes: Unanimous.  
Mayor request that the Planning Board to review height restrictions in all zoning districts, 
Paterson moved to send request to Planning Board, seconded by Gundersen, Ayes: Unanimous. 
Mayor request that the Planning Board to review sidewalk requirements in Commercial Districts, 
Gundersen moved to send request to Planning Board, seconded by Grell, Ayes: Unanimous.    
 
Councilman Jason Gundersen, provided copies of photo of water standing in an area that was 
recently repaired with new concrete on Redick Street.  Asked if something could be done to get 
the area repaired so it drains instead of holding water.  Maintenance agreed to get the issue 
resolved.    
 
Councilman Frank Corcoran, requested that the council consider adding restrictions to the 
amount of time fireworks are legal to be discharged in city limits, a proposed ordinance from 
Council Bluffs is part of the packet.  Can we get this in place for this year?  Council could 
approve during the proposed special meeting on June 4th, and final reading at the regular 
meeting.   Also, open burning has become another concern with the weather warming up, 
Frank would like to see some restrictions or regulations added to the code 
 
Councilman Pat Paterson, the council and landlords have spent time reviewing the Rental 
Inspection Program, Ordinance and forms in recent weeks.  The Ordinance is ready for 
approval.    Paterson requested an update on property tax abatement sunset clause.  City 
Attorney O’Bradovich confirmed that there is no end date unless the Council makes motion to 
end the program.  
 
City Attorney Mike O’Bradovich, provided the recommendation from Planning Board regard C-2 
Zoning change to add “Gaming”   Attorney recommended setting public hearing on June 4th to 
hear public comments and concerns regarding the change.  Notice will be published and mailed 
to the necessary parties as required per the City Code.   
 
City Clerk Jackie Stender, provided an explanation of the necessary budget amendments for 
public hearing on June 4th.  Increased expenditure for Public Safety to purchase Fire pickup 
$42,250 and moved Inspector budget to correct program and added $9,300 for the demo and 
cleanup of 1501 Cachelin Drive. Increased expenditures in Community & Economic 
Development $31,900 for developer agreement payment and emergency repair under Urban 
Revit program. Increase expenditures to Government: $11,900 for police consultant, newsletter 
printing and election cost.  Cap. Projects reduced $380,725 for payments due after 7/1/18. 
Increase Transfers for Revenues and Expenditures $195,000. 



Gundersen moved to approve resolution to Set Public Hearing on C-2 Zoning changes for June 
4th at 6 p.m., seconded by Grell, Ayes: Unanimous 
Gundersen moved to approve resolution to Set Wages as follows:  

William Calabretto 8.50 04/16/2018 Park Concessions 
Esther Schroeder 8.75 04/12/2018 Park Concessions 
Tracey Calabretto 9.14 04/10/2018 Park Concessions 
Cassandra Payne 9.14 04/11/2018 Park Concessions 
Janelle Kannedy  9.79 04/12/2018 Park Concessions 
Cheryl Calabretto 9.94 04/16/2018 Park Concessions 
Daniel Koch  9.50 05/08/2018 Park Maintenance – Seasonal 
Richard Adams  9.50 04/24/2018 Park Maintenance – Seasonal  
Gina Smith  10.57 03/05/2018 Clerk’s Assistant – New Hire 
Philip Buchanan  12.67 05/3/2018 Maintenance – New Hire 
Maxwell Edmonds 19.95 01/29/2018 Police Department–New Hire  
Brock Gentile  23.87 01/15/2018 Police Department – 4th Year  
Matt Owens  23.87 03/10/2018 Police Department – 4th Year 

Motion was seconded by Grell, Ayes: Unanimous 
 
Gundersen moved to approve the second reading of Ordinance concerning Right Of Way and 
Permits, and waive the third read to proceed with approval, seconded by Grell, Ayes: 
Unanimous 
 
Paterson moved to approve the first Reading of Ordinance concerning Rental Inspection 
Program, seconded by Wahl, Ayes: Unanimous. 
 
At 9:15 p.m. Gundersen moved for the Council to go into executive session to discuss litigation 
pursuant to Iowa Code 21.5(1)(c), seconded by Grell. Ayes: Unanimous 
 
At 9:50 p.m. the City Council reconvened in open session and motioned to adjourn for the 
evening 
 
Jackie Stender    Ron Cumberledge  
City Clerk    Mayor  














	06-11-18 Planning agenda
	05-14-18 Planning mins
	04-16-18-council mins
	05-21-18-council mins
	lot line adjustment -17th st
	Lakeside request to vacate Ave J
	Tribe Permit Application
	Variances on Casino

